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BUILDINGS AT RISK

Grand houses of Thornton
and Burleigh in the spotlight

Two more of the grand hous-
es built on the Ballabrooie Es-
tate off Peel Road are Burleigh,
which still stands, and Thorn-
ton which was rebuilt in the
late twentieth century.
Thisweek, Susan Temple looks
athowinhabitantsofbothwere
affected by theIsle of Man Joint
Stock Bank crash, andthe lega-
cies of their inhabitants.

hornton was the
firsthouse to be
constructed on
the Ballabrooie
estate.

It was built on several plots
assembled by Edward Forbes,
abanker, and wasin the
classical style subsequently
adopted by the majority of the
otherhousesin the area. It was
named after the Forbes fam-
ily estate in Scotland and was
designed by John Welch (see
Buildings at Risk, loM Exam-
iner of December 11, 2018).

Before he became a banker,
Mr Forbes was engaged in
‘herring curing and other
businesses in Douglas’. The
Forbes family had come to the
island following the defeat of
the Jacobite Rebellion in 1745
and lived at Oakhill, Braddan.

In1826 the second bank
tobear the name Isle of Man
Bank was established in Doug-
las by the partnership of Ed-
ward Forbes and John Wulff,
aperson ‘understood to be of
considerable capital and of
foreign extraction’. For seven
years the bank appearsto have
functioned normally despite
Forbes having ‘speculated in
various matters’ but by 1833 it
became increasingly indebted
toits London agents, Wil-
liams, Deacon and Company.

The bank was unable to
provide the security required
by Williams, Deacon and Com-
pany to cover their indebted-
nessand, early in 1836, Wulff
and Forbes requested time to
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John Welch's plans for Thornton

pay and declared their inten-
tion of converting the bank
into ajoint stock company
named ‘The Isle of Man Joint
Stock Banking Company’.
Williams, Deacon and
Company appear to have sup-
ported this proposal and, in
due course, the Isle of Man
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Thornton was offered for sale by auctionin April 1921 by the Karran
Trusteesand purchased by T.H. (‘Tossie’) Cowin for £2,670

(Source: Auction Particulars MNH Ref: MS 10166)

Bank was taken over by the
Isle of Man Joint Stock Bank-
ing Company which opened
for business on June 12,1836.
John Wulff was one of the five
directors and he continued
tohold office until his death
some four years later.
Edward Forbes was ap-

Widening Peel Road below Thorntonin the 1930s. It was greatly widened on the south side between the 1830s and
1950s, but the stone retaining walls bounding the former mansion grounds follow the road’s original course

pointed manager and Wil-
liams, Deacon and Company
remained as London agents of
the bank. The prospectus for
the new bank induced many
peoplein theisland toinvest,
including Sir William Hillary,
Francis Byne of Burleigh and
William George Dumbell.

Within six months, the
new bank was in financial
difficulties, not only was the
joint stock capital swallowed
up by discharging the debts of
Forbes and Wulff, but many
thousands were lent out ‘with
and without’ security.

Itsindebtedness toits Lon-
don agents was increasing,
as aresult Williams, Deacon
and Company informed the
directorsthat, unless their
business was conducted more
favourably, the account would
have to be closed - clearly the
new bank had not cured the
old problem.

The gradual deteriora-
tion of the financial affairs
of the Isle of Man Joint Stock
Banking Company eventu-
ally resulted in the bank’s
closure on August 14,1843.
The manager, Edward Forbes,
was discovered to have been
circulating false bills, the bank
wasinsolvent and its largest
creditor was Williams, Deacon

The original Thornton, designed by John Welch, was named after the

Scottish country seat of the Forbes family
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Burleigh Manor, now the headquarters of long-established local firm of
chartered accountants Browne, Craine & Co
(salesbrochure, Cowley Groves circa1980)

and Company who were owed
some £80,000.

The failure of the bank was
disastrous for the sharehold-
ers who not only lost the mon-
ey they had put in but were
alsoresponsible for repaying
the debts of the bank.

Thornton was sold ata
Coroner’s Auction on June 28,
1844, together with the offices
of the bank on North Quay
still standing as the former
Newsons warehouse, and at
risk (see Buildings at Risk in
the Examiner of August 16 and
25,2016).

In February1845 aletter
from Edward Forbes appeared
inthe Herald attempting to
put the whole blame for the
misfortunes upon James Grel-
lier, charging him with being
theinstigator of the ‘very sys-
tem by which ruin and desola-
tion have been brought upon
many of the shareholdersin
that enormous concatenation
of villainy - the bank’.

Edward Forbes left the is-
land after the enquiry into the
affairs of the bank. However,
his two sons were distin-
guished academics, Edward
Jrwas a pioneer in the field of
biogeography who analysed
the distribution of plant and
animal life in the British Isles

asrelated to certain geological
changes. He became presi-
dent of the Geological Society
aged 38 and held the Chair of
Natural History at Edinburgh
University.

He organised the geologi-
cal specimens at the Great
Exhibition of 1851 and helped
design the outdoor dinosaur
park which can still be visited
at Crystal Palace. Known prin-
cipally for his work in Marine
Biology, he died on November
18,1854.in Wardie Parish, near
Edinburgh and is buried at
Dean Cemetery.

His brother David, was a
noted mineralogist.

One of the directors of the
Joint Stock Banking Company
atits closure was George Wil-
liam Dumbell.

Thornton was offered for
sale by auctionin April 1921
by the Karran Trustees. The
whole estate was purchased
by T.H. (‘Tossie’) Cowin for
£2,670.

He sold offthe northern
frontage where six pairs of
semi-detached houses form
Thornton Avenue.

The original Thornton was
demolished and itisnow a
15,400 square feet office build-
ing but retaining the general
style of the original.
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BURLEIGH
In 1834, Francis Basil Byne
bought the land upon which
Burleigh was built from Cap-
tain Caesar Bacon of Santon
for £460.

Theland was adjacent to
that on which Mount Vernon
was constructed.

Little isknown of Byne’s
early life, though he was
described as a well-known
yachtsman and as having been
engaged for some yearsona
government survey in Prus-
sia. His professional expertise
was in the field of mining and
quarrying. He married Marga-
ret Moore, youngest daughter
of the late Captain Moore of
Douglasin1828.

A ‘cost book’ company was
formed on the Isle of Man in
February 1827 to work the
Whitespots Lead Mines at
Newtownards in County Down
and Francis Byne had an inter-
estin the mine until it closed
in1865.

It was a considerable un-
dertaking, the company even-
tually sank seven major shafts
and installed steam engines
for pumping and winding at
three of them. It even refur-
bished the manorial windmill
inorder to drive crushers and
ore dressing material. But
some of the mining methods
fell short of ‘current’ practices
and ore was ripped out with-
out thought for the future.

Areport commissioned by
the owner, Lord Londonderry,
on the mine in 1842 said that
the workings were then cen-
tred on the North Engine Shaft
which was 60 fathoms deep.
Some went below this, how-
ever, and were being pumped
by hand at great cost. Ore from
the mine was shipped to Wales
through Bangor for smelting.

Two of the partnersleftin
1839 leaving Byne with new

partners, George William
Dumbell, amajor sharehold-
erin the Great Laxey Mining
Company, William Beckwith
and William Gill, all from the
Isle of Man. Through this con-
nection, when Dumbell ob-

Dinosaurs at the Great Exhibition, one of Queen Victoria's favourite exhibits!

The windmill tower at Byne, Dumbell and Beckwith's Whitespots mine.
Once used to power crushing/stamping machinery, it was more recently
usedasalocation to film Game of Thrones

The Great Exhibition at Crystal Palace - Edward Forbes Jr, from Thornton, designed the geology gallery

tained permission to appoint
anew captain for the mines at
Laxey, hejust transferred one
of his existing employees, the
Cornishman Richard Rowe,
who had been employed by
Byne, Dumbell and Beckwith
at Whitespots.

Francis Byne was alsoa
shareholder in the Isle of Man
Joint Stock Company which,
coincidentally, had George
William Dumbell as one of
its five directors. Mark Solly
defines ajoint stock company
in his book ‘Banksin the Isle
of Man’as aform of trading
entity that was developed in
thelatter part of the 17th cen-
tury that was based upon a
partnership whose partners
traded onjoint account and
whose profits were available
to bedistributed to members
who contributed the capital or
stockin trade of the company.

Joint stock companies
were the product of devel-
opments of the common

law rather than statute law,
although the latter was later
used to codify the law for com-
panies including the confer-
ral of limited liability in 1865.
Prior to then, shareholders
were deemed to be person-
ally responsible for any debts
raised by the companiesin
which they had shares.

It waslargely this which
caused the dreadful series of
events which led to the loss
of Burleigh and which forced
Francis Byne to flee the island.

The latter was called upon
to contribute towards ex-
pensesincurred by the mining
company and, having no ready
monies, took out aloan from
the Isle of Man Joint Stock
Company. When the bank
failed, along with all the other
shareholders, he was deemed
responsible for the bank’s
debts. Not only that, but he
had abond for £1,200 charged
upon Burleigh and he also
owed his builder monies, se-

cured on his furniture, which
was sold by coroner’s sale in
March 1849. Burleigh was sold
by public auction in July 1850
for £1,900. The purchaser was
Mr William Duff.

Sadly Mr Duff did not live
long to enjoy his house, for

by the Deemster Callow who
telephoned the fire brigade
when he saw Mount Vernon
ablaze, and who purchased
Mount Vernon Lodge and cot-
tages on the Peel Road after
the fire. Iwonder how many
telephones there were in

who were followed by the Le
Marquands. Fenella (Eunice
Salmond) wrote along article
intheIsle of Man Times de-
scribing the alterations and
modernisation they had putin
place. Since then, it has been
the headquarters of chartered

hedied on 21 February 1852 Douglasin1897! accountants Browne, Craine
aged 60. One of the tasks for Inrecent timesit was the and Co together with their as-
hisexecutorswasthedisposal ~ home of the Maley family sociated companies.
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